
Page # 1 of 1 Posted: December 2, 2016 
 

REV 09/25/2015 
PLEASE NOTE:  IN ACCORDANCE WITH FLORIDA STATUES 286.0105:  ANY PERSON WHO DESIRES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION AT THIS MEETING WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS AND FOR 
THIS PURPOSE MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE WHICH INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS BASED, WHICH SUCH 
WRITTEN RECORD IS NOT PROVIDED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN. 
 

PLEASE NOTE:  IN ACCORDANCE WITH FLORIDA STATUTE 286.26: PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES NEEDING ASSISTANCE TO PARTICIPATE IN ANY OF THESE PROCEEDINGS SHOULD CONTACT 
KATHY RATHEL, 300 WEST PLANT STREET, WINTER GARDEN, FL 34787, (407) 656-4111, EXT 5149 - 48 HOURS IN ADVANCE OF THE MEETING. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
To: Will Hawthorne – Chairman 

David Kassander – Vice Chairman 
Mark DeFuso 
Heather Gantt 
Gerald Jowers 
Chris Lee 
Rachel Saunders 
 

Copy to: Mike Bollhoefer 
Dan Langley 
Kurt Ardaman 
Ed Williams 
Stephen Pash 
Kelly Carson 
Jessica Frye 

 
RE: Agenda – December 5, 2016 at 6:30 PM 

Commission Chambers, City Hall 
 300 West Plant Street, Winter Garden 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE NOVEMBER 7, 2016 MEETING  
 

ANNEXATION / FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT / REZONING (PUBLIC HEARING) 
 

4. 535 W Plant Street – Toole-Asma, LLC (Rezoning) 
Parcel ID #22-22-27-0000-00-074 

 

5. 12451 Walker Pond Road – Gray Robinson, P.A. (Annex / FLU / PUD Rezoning) 
Parcel ID #36-22-27-0000-00-058, 01-23-27-0000-00-003, -009, -004, -058, -030, -066 & -050 

 

SPECIAL EXCEPTION PERMIT (PUBLIC HEARING) 
 

6. 553 W Plant Street – DHP Solutions, LLC 
Parcel ID #22-22-27-0000-00-055 

 

VARIANCE (PUBLIC HEARING) 
 

7. 441 N Lakeview Avenue – Anthony Perry 
Parcel ID #14-22-27-9396-04-140 

 

ADJOURN to the next regular Planning and Zoning Board meeting on Monday, January 9, 2017 
at 6:30 p.m. in City Hall Commission Chambers, 300 W. Plant Street, 1st floor. 
 

(NOTE: the January 2, 2017 Planning & Zoning meeting has been rescheduled 
to January 9, 2017 due to the holiday) 

For More Information, Contact: 
Kathy Rathel 

Customer Service Technician 
City of Winter Garden  
300 West Plant Street 

Winter Garden, FL 34787 
407.656.4111 ext. 5149 

krathel@cwgdn.com 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD AGENDA  

mailto:krathel@


 

 

NOVEMBER 7, 2016 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 1 
 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

NOVEMBER 7, 2016 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE / INVOCATION 

Vice-Chairman David Kassander called the meeting of the City of Winter Garden Planning 
and Zoning Board to order at 6:31 p.m. in the City Hall Commission Chambers.  A moment of 
silence was followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
2. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 

The roll was called and a quorum was declared present. 

MEMBERS PRESENT: 

Vice-Chairman David Kassander and Board Members: Heather Gantt, Gerald Jowers, and 
Chris Lee 

MEMBERS ABSENT: 
Chairman Will Hawthorne, Mark DeFuso, and Mark Maciel (all excused) 

STAFF PRESENT: 
City Attorney Kurt Ardaman, Community Development Director Steve Pash, Planning 
Consultant Ed Williams, Planner I Jessica Frye, and recording secretary Kathleen Rathel 

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

Motion by Gerald Jowers to approve the regular meeting minutes of October 3, 2016 
and seconded by Chris Lee.  Motion carried unanimously 4 - 0. 

 
ANNEXATION / FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT / REZONING (PUBLIC HEARING) 
4. 12451 Walker Pond Road (Lake Roberts Reserve) – American Orange County 

Investments 40, LLC et al / GrayRobinson, P.A. (PUD ANNEXATION/FLU/ZONING) 
Community Development Director Pash stated that Staff recommends tabling this item to the 
December 5, 2016 P&Z meeting at 6:30 p.m. in order to work out issues between the City and 
the Developer.  Tom Sullivan, on behalf of the owner, agreed to the recommendation. 

Resident Mike Calow, 12102 Walker Pond Road, asked if the project would continue to be 
drawn out as the project has been going on for about a year.  The neighborhood would like to 
bring this to closure as they live in a Windermere rural settlement and want it to remain that 
way without their road being turned into a utility access.  Mr. Calow asked if the project was 
tabled today, would it be heard next month and would any written input be accepted. 

DR
AF
T



 

NOVEMBER 7, 2016 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 2 
 

City Attorney Ardaman clarified that, if the project was being tabled to a date certain, the 
project would be opened for public comment at that time.  Mr. Pash stated comments could be 
emailed to Staff if anyone was not able to make the next meeting. 

Mr. Calow asked if there was a chance the project could be continued again.  Chairman 
Kassander answered that it would be scheduled but there were no guarantees. 

Motion by Heather Gantt to recommend tabling Ordinances 16-42, 16-43 and 16-44 
[12451 Walker Pond Road] until the December 5, 2016 P&Z Board meeting at 6:30 
p.m.  Seconded by Chris Lee the motion carried unanimously 4 - 0. 

 
PRELIMINARY PLAT / FINAL PLAT / LOT SPLIT (PUBLIC HEARING) 
5. 605 E. Plant Street (Heritage at Plant Street) – BFC Plant Street LLC / M.I. Homes of 

Orlando (PRE-PLAT) 
Community Development Director Pash presented a request to approve the Preliminary Plat 
for the Heritage at Plant Street subdivision, formerly the Battaglia Property, which is a 16.66 
+/- acre property located at 605 E. Plant Street.  The property is situated on the north side of 
E. Plant Street west of the City Library.  The subdivision would consist of 43 new townhomes 
and 41 new single family residential lots to include various tracts for ponds, roads, and 
common area.  The proposed Preliminary Plat is consistent with the City Code, the property’s 
Planned Unit Development zoning, and has been reviewed and conditionally approved by the 
Development Review Committee.  Staff has reviewed the request and recommends approval 
subject to the conditions outlined in the Staff Report. 

Board Member Lee asked if there had been any changes to the Plat since it was last voted on.  
Mr. Pash stated there had not and was the same as when submitted for the PUD. 

Board Member Jowers stated the Plat had been approved many years ago and feels the City 
should still honor the approval even though the applicant never acted on the project. 

Motion by Gerald Jowers to recommend approval of 605 E. Plant Street [with Staff 
Recommendations] (as provided in the agenda package).  Seconded by Heather 
Gantt the motion carried unanimously 4 - 0. 

 
SPECIAL EXCEPTION (PUBLIC HEARING) 
6. 14131 W. Colonial Drive – Amera Winter Garden, Ltd. / Romp n’Roll 

Planner Frye presented a Special Exception request for the property located at 14131 W. 
Colonial Drive, within the Winter Garden Shopping Center, with a zoning of C-2.  The 
applicant is requesting to operate a Children’s Activity Center with associated child care 
programs such as interactive classes for various age groups, fitness classes, day camps, 
Parent’s Night/Morning Out events, and children’s parties.  All equipment and activities 
will be contained within the facility.  Staff has reviewed the request and recommends 
approval subject to the conditions outlined in the Staff Report. 

Board Member Kassander inquired if there were any restrictions on the hours of operation.  
Ms. Frye stated there was a sample schedule with hours included in the packet and the 
Parent’s Night Out would end at 9:00 or 9:30 p.m. 

DR
AF
T



 

NOVEMBER 7, 2016 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 3 
 

Motion by Chris Lee to recommend approval of the Special Exception for 14131 W. 
Colonial Drive [with Staff Recommendations] (as provided in the agenda package).  
Seconded by Gerald Jowers the motion carried unanimously 4 - 0. 

 
VARIANCE (PUBLIC HEARING) 
7. 315 Florida Avenue – Ramiro Lopez 

Planner Frye presented a variance request for the 0.229 +/- acre property located at 315 
Florida Avenue.  The property is zoned R-2 and the variance would allow the construction of 
a front entryway onto the existing structure to be built with a front yard setback of 25.3 feet in 
lieu of the minimum required front yard setback of 30 feet.  Staff has reviewed the request and 
recommends approval subject to the conditions outlined in the Staff Report. 

Motion by Heather Gantt to approve the Variance for 315 Florida Avenue with Staff 
Recommendations (as provided in the agenda package).  Seconded by Chris Lee the 
motion carried unanimously 4 - 0. 

 
8. 1717 Bridgepebble Road – Tim & Nelia Holmes 

Community Development Director Pash presented a variance request for the 0.12 +/- acre 
property located at 1717 Bridgepebble Road in the Stone Creek subdivision.  The variance 
would allow for the construction of a 25’ x 10’ screen room addition with a solid roof at a 15 
foot rear yard setback in lieu of the minimum required rear yard setback of 20 foot.  Staff has 
reviewed the request and recommends approval subject to the conditions outlined in the Staff 
Report.  The condition is that the room cannot become a fully enclosed air conditioned space. 

Board Member Kassander what the property backs up to.  Mr. Pash stated it backs up to the 
side of another house which has a 7.5 foot side yard setback and the HOA has approved. 

Motion by Gerald Jowers to approve the Variance for 1717 Bridgepebble Road [with 
Staff Recommendations] (as provided in the agenda packet).  Seconded by Chris Lee 
the motion carried unanimously 4 - 0. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:45 p.m. 
 

ATTEST:  APPROVED: 
   

Recording Secretary Kathleen Rathel  Chairman Will Hawthorne 
 

DR
AF
T



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 4 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  December 2, 2016 MEETING DATE: December 5, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: 535 W. Plant Street (0.4 +/- Acres) 

ORDINANCE 17-02 (Rezoning) 
 PROJECT NAME Toole Asma, LLC 
 PARCEL ID# 22-22-27-0000-00-074 
ISSUE: The applicant is requesting to rezone a 0.4 ± acre property which is located 

within the City of Winter Garden and carries a Future Land Use Designation 
of C (Commercial) on the Future Land Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive 
Plan from R-NC (Residential Neighborhood Commercial District) to C-1 
(Central Commercial District). 

  
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  
OWNER/APPLICANT: Toole Asma, LLC 
  
CURRENT ZONING: R-NC (Residential Neighborhood Commercial) 
  
PROPOSED ZONING: C-1 (Central Commercial District) 
  
CURRENT FLU: C (Commercial) 
  
PROPOSED FLU: N/A 
  
SUMMARY: 
 The proposed rezoning is consistent with the existing Future Land 

Use designation and the development on the surrounding properties 
(See attached Staff Report). 

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
  
 City staff recommends approval of Ordinance 17-02 with first reading 

by City Commission scheduled for December 6, 2016 and the second 
reading scheduled for January 12, 2017. 
 

NEXT STEP(S):  
 N/A 
  
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Staff Report 

Ordinance 17-02 
 



LOCATION MAP 
 

535 W. Plant Street 
 

REZONING 
 
 
 

 



CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO: PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
PREPARED BY: STEVE PASH, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 
DATE: November 30, 2016 
SUBJECT: REZONING 
  535 W. Plant Street (TOOLE-ASMA, LLC) 
  PARCEL ID # 22-22-27-0000-00-074 
    
APPLICANT: Toole-Asma, LLC 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the proposed project for compliance with the City of 
Winter Garden Code of Ordinances and Comprehensive Plan. 
The subject property, located at 535 West Plant Street, is approximately 0.4 ± acres. The map 
below depicts the location of the subject property within the City of Winter Garden municipal 
limits: 

 



535 West Plant Street 
Rezoning - Staff Report 

December 5, 2016 
Page 2 

 
 

The applicant is requesting to rezone the 0.4 ± acre property which is located within the City of 
Winter Garden and carries a Future Land Use Designation of C (Commercial) on the Future 
Land Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan from R-NC (Residential Neighborhood 
Commercial District) to C-1 (Central Commercial District). 

EXISTING USE 
The subject property contains a 4,676 square foot building built in 1982, which is occupied with 
several offices.  

ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 
The properties located to the north of the subject property are developed with an apartment 
complex, zoned R-2, and located in the City of Winter Garden. The property located to the east 
of the subject property is vacant land owned by the City of Winter Garden and is used partially 
for the West Orange Trail.  The property to the west of the subject property has an 4,260 square 
foot building, is zoned C-1, and is in the City of Winter Garden. The properties to the south of 
the subject property are developed with single-family homes, zoned R-2, and located in the City 
of Winter Garden. 

PROPOSED USE 
The owner is planning to keep the existing uses for now and continue renting out office space. 
 
SUMMARY 
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 17-02 to rezone the subject property from R-NC to C-
1, which is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and surrounding properties.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



535 West Plant Street 
Rezoning - Staff Report 

December 5, 2016 
Page 3 

 
 

MAPS 
AERIAL PHOTO 

535 W. Plant Street 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



535 West Plant Street 
Rezoning - Staff Report 

December 5, 2016 
Page 4 

 
 

 
ZONING MAP 

535 W. Plant Street 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject property change 
from City R-NC to C-1 



535 West Plant Street 
Rezoning - Staff Report 

December 5, 2016 
Page 5 

 
 

 
 
 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
535 W. Plant Street 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject property existing 
Commercial FLU 



535 West Plant Street 
Rezoning - Staff Report 

December 5, 2016 
Page 6 

 
 

SURVEY 
553 W. PLANT STREET 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

END OF STAFF REPORT 



 
Ordinance 17-02 

Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE 17-02 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA 
REZONING APPROXIMATELY 0.4 ± ACRES LOCATED AT 535 
WEST PLANT STREET GENERALLY LOCATED AT THE 
NORTHWEST CORNER OF WEST PLANT STREET AND 
NORTH PARK AVENUE FROM CITY R-NC RESIDENTIAL 
NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL DISTRICT TO CITY C-1 
CENTRAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 WHEREAS, the owner of that certain real property generally described as 0.4 ± acres 
located at 535 West Plant Street generally located at the northwest corner of West Plant Street 
and North Park Avenue, and legally described in Section 1 of this ordinance has petitioned the 
City to rezone said property from R-NC Residential Neighborhood Commercial to C-1 Central 
Commercial District zoning classification, therefore; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after public notice and due consideration of public comment, the City 
Commission of the City of Winter Garden hereby finds and declares the rezoning approved by 
this Ordinance is consistent with the City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, further, the City Commission finds that based on competent, substantial 
evidence in the record, the rezoning approved by this Ordinance meets all applicable criteria for 
rezoning the Property to C-1 Central Commercial District contained within the City of Winter 
Garden Comprehensive Plan and the Code of Ordinances.  
 

  
 BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:  
 
 SECTION 1: Rezoning.  The above “Whereas” clauses constitute findings by the City 
Commission.  After due notice and public hearing, the zoning classification of real property 
legally described on ATTACHMENT “A,” is hereby rezoned from R-NC Residential 
Neighborhood Commercial District to C-1 Central Commercial District in the City of Winter 
Garden, Florida.  
 
 SECTION 2: Zoning Map.  The City Planner is hereby authorized and directed to amend 
the Official Winter Garden Zoning Map in accordance with the provisions of this ordinance. 
 
 SECTION 3: Non-Severability.  Should any portion of this Ordinance be held invalid, 
then the entire Ordinance shall be null and void. 
 
 SECTION 4: Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption at its 
second reading. 
  

FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  , 2017. 
 

SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  
 

, 2017. 
 
 

 
ADOPTED this ______ day of _____________, 2017, by the City Commission of the City of 



 
Ordinance 17-02 

Page 2 of 3 

Winter Garden, Florida. 
 

      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      JOHN REES, Mayor/Commissioner 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk 



 
Ordinance 17-02 

Page 3 of 3 

ATTACHMENT "A" 
  

 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 
PARCEL ID#: 22-22-27-0000-00-074 
 
DESCRIPTION: 
 

 
 
Containing 0.4 acres, more or less. 
 
 



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 5 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  December 2, 2016 MEETING DATE: December 5, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Ordinances 16-42, 16-43, & 16-44 

12564 Stoneybrook West Pkwy; 12451, 12304, 12174 Walker Pond Road 
(ANNEXATION, FLU AMENDMENT, REZONING PUD) 

 PROJECT NAME Lake Roberts Reserve Annexation, FLU, & PUD 
 PARCEL ID# 36-22-27-0000-00-058, 01-23-27-0000-00-009 (a portion), 

01-23-27-0000-00-004, 01-23-27-0000-00-058, 
01-23-27-0000-00-030, 01-23-27-0000-00-003, 
01-23-27-0000-00-066, 01-23-27-0000-00-050 

  
ISSUE: Applicant is requesting annexation, FLU amendment, and PUD rezoning of 

78.87 +/- acres of land in order to develop a residential subdivision with 90 
single-family lots.   

  
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  
OWNER/APPLICANT: American Orange County Investments 40, LLC, et al.  
  
CURRENT ZONING: County A-1 Citrus Rural District 
  
PROPOSED ZONING: City PUD Planned Unit Development 
  
CURRENT FLU: County Rural & Rural 1/1 
  
PROPOSED FLU: City Low Density Residential 
  
SUMMARY: This item was tabled at the November 7, 2016 Planning & Zoning Board 

meeting until date certain on December 5, 2016. However, Staff has still 
not received the specific information requested of the applicant. This 
information needs to be reviewed before Staff can make a 
recommendation to the Board. 

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 Staff recommends this item be tabled until the required information is 

submitted, the outstanding issues are addressed, and Staff has had 
sufficient time to review before a board hearing. 

  
NEXT STEP(S):  
  
  
ATTACHMENT(S):  
  
 



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 6 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  December 2, 2016 MEETING DATE: December 5, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: 553 W Plant St (SPECIAL EXCEPTION PERMIT) 
 PROJECT NAME DHP Solutions 
 PARCEL ID# 22-22-27-0000-00-055 
  
ISSUE: The applicant is requesting a Special Exception Permit to allow for the 

property located at 553 W Plant Street to operate a golf cart sales and 
service facility.   

  
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  
OWNER/APPLICANT: DHP Solutions, LLC 
  
CURRENT ZONING: C-1 
  
PROPOSED ZONING: N/A 
  
CURRENT FLU: Commercial 
  
PROPOSED FLU: N/A 
  
  
SUMMARY: 
 The applicant is requesting a Special Exception Permit to allow a 

portion of the existing +/- 4,200 square foot building to be renovated 
and used as a sales facility for golf carts and golf cart accessories, 
with the remainder of the building to be used as a service area to 
perform mechanical work on golf carts.   

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 Staff recommends approval of the Special Exception subject to the 

conditions outlined in the staff report.   
  
NEXT STEP(S):  
 Obtain DRC approval for Site Plan changes as well as all necessary 

building permits for interior and exterior building renovations.   
  
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Staff Report 
 



LOCATION MAP 
 

553 W. Plant Street 
 

SPECIAL EXCEPTION 
 
 
 

 



CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
PREPARED BY:  KELLY CARSON, URBAN DESIGNER 
DATE:  DECEMBER 1, 2016 
SUBJECT:  SPECIAL EXCEPTION PERMIT 
   553 W Plant Street (Golf Cart Sales & Service Facility) 
    PARCEL ID # 22-22-27-0000-00-055  
    
APPLICANT: DHP Solutions, LLC 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the proposed project for compliance with the City of 
Winter Garden Code of Ordinances and Comprehensive Plan. 
The subject property is located at 553 W Plant Street. The map below depicts the location of the 
subject property within the City of Winter Garden municipal limits: 

 
 



DHP Solutions 
553 W Plant Street 

Special Exception Permit - Staff Report 
December 1, 2016 

Page 2 
 
The request is for a Special Exception Permit to allow a portion of the building to be used as a 
sales facility for golf carts and the remainder of the building to be used as a service area to 
perform mechanical work on golf carts.  The subject property is located within the City of 
Winter Garden municipal limits, and carries the zoning designation C-1 and is designated 
Commercial on the Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan. 
  
EXISTING/PROPOSED USE 
The property contains a +/- 4,200 square foot warehouse & masonry building that is currently 
vacant.  The building has been used in the past as an auto repair shop.     

The applicant is proposing to renovate the existing building and site in order to open a retail shop 
to sell golf carts and accessories as well as a repair shop to work on the golf carts.     

 

ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 
The property located to the north includes a segment of the West Orange Trail right-of-way and 
is located in the City of Winter Garden. The property to the west is developed with a pet 
grooming shop, is zoned R-NC, and is located within the City of Winter Garden. The property to 
the east features a commercial building and is zoned R-NC, but is currently going through the 
rezoning process to become C-1. This property is also in the City. The properties to the south are 
all developed with single-family residential homes, are zoned R-2, and are located in the City of 
Winter Garden. 
 
COMMENTS FROM SURROUNDING PROPERTY OWNERS 
On December 2, 2016, City Staff received a signed letter via email from Scott Zimmerman, the 
manager of Park Avenue Villas, LTD., which is the company that owns and manages the 
apartment complex located southeast of the subject property.  In the letter, Mr. Zimmerman 
stated that the company does “… not favor the special exception permit to allow a commercial 
business which includes vehicle maintenance and repairing services to be operating in a 
residential area directly across the street from many residences including our residential 
community and alongside the West Orange Trail. This business if approved, would adversely 
affect the peaceful enjoyment of all of the residents in the area”. 
   
SUMMARY 
City Staff recommends approval of the proposed special exception permit to operate the golf cart 
sales and service facility at 553 W Plant Street with the following conditions: 

1. Site Plan Approval is required for the proposed site changes. The new building elevations 
will also be reviewed at that time, and the City Manager’s approval is required.  

2. All golf carts associated with the Sales and Service Facility shall be stored inside the 
building. 

3. All work on golf carts shall be done inside the building.   



DHP Solutions 
553 W Plant Street 

Special Exception Permit - Staff Report 
December 1, 2016 

Page 3 
4. No outdoor displays of any kind are allowed. 
5. No displays of any kind are allowed on any vehicles in the parking lot (i.e. for sale signs, 

advertisements). 
6. No storage of parts, garbage, gasoline, or oil is allowed outside. 
7. This Special Exception is approved for this business (DHP Solutions) only and shall 

expire if the business relocates or closes.  
8. Prohibited Signs: 

a. No sign, permanent or temporary, shall be erected or placed so that it interferes 
with a clear sight triangle distance per Florida Department of Transportation 
(FDOT) design standards. 

b. Portable signs. 
c. A-frame, T-framed signs. 
d. Signs on trailer frames with or without mounted wheels. 
e. Vehicle signs or signs on or attached to vehicles which have a total copy area in 

excess of ten square feet, when the vehicle is not "regularly used in the conduct of 
the business" and (a) is visible from a street right-of-way within one hundred feet 
of the vehicle, and (b) is parked for more than two consecutive hours within one 
hundred feet of any street right-of-way. A vehicle shall not be considered 
"regularly used in the conduct of the business" if the vehicle is used primarily for 
advertising, or for the purpose of advertising. 

f. Flashing, moving, animated coursing, blinker, racer-type, intermittent, rotating, 
moving or revolving signs, whirligig devices, inflatable signs and tethered 
balloons, pennants, banners, ribbons, streamers, spinners, and other similar types 
of attention-getting devices except for changeable copy signs when in compliance 
with the applicable regulations of this chapter. 

g. Signage used on bus transit shelters within the right-of-way. 
h. Bench signs. 
i. Roof sign. 
j. Traffic sign replica. 
k. Pole signs. 
l. Pylon signs. 
m. Changing sign (automatic). 
n. "Stick-in" signs. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



DHP Solutions 
553 W Plant Street 

Special Exception Permit - Staff Report 
December 1, 2016 

Page 4 
 

 
 

AERIAL PHOTO 
553 W Plant Street 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DHP Solutions 
553 W Plant Street 

Special Exception Permit - Staff Report 
December 1, 2016 

Page 5 
 
 
 
 

SITE SURVEY 
553 W Plant Street 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DHP Solutions 
553 W Plant Street 

Special Exception Permit - Staff Report 
December 1, 2016 

Page 6 
 
 
 

PROPOSED SITE PLAN 
553 W Plant Street 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 



DHP Solutions 
553 W Plant Street 

Special Exception Permit - Staff Report 
December 1, 2016 

Page 7 
 

 
 

PROPOSED BUILDING ELEVATIONS 
553 W Plant Street 

 
 

 
 
 
 

END OF STAFF REPORT 



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 7 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  December 1, 2016 MEETING DATE: December 5, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: 441 N Lakeview Ave. (Variance) 
 PROJECT NAME Perry Residence Carport  
 PARCEL ID# 14-22-27-9396-04-140 
  
ISSUE: The applicant is requesting two variances to allow a carport to be built 

with a rear yard setback of 21.7 feet in lieu of the minimum 25.5 feet and 
to be built with a height of 15 feet in lieu of the maximum of 12 feet for 
accessory buildings.   

  
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  
OWNER/APPLICANT: Anthony Perry 
  
CURRENT ZONING: R-2- Residential District 
  
PROPOSED ZONING: N/A 
  
CURRENT FLU: LR- Low Density Residential 
  
PROPOSED FLU: N/A 
  
  
SUMMARY: 
 The applicant is proposing to add a carport to the rear of the 

property; the proposed carport requires two variances.  The first 
variance request is for a 21.7 foot rear yard setback in lieu of the 
minimum required 25.5 foot rear yard setback (20% of the lot 
depth); the second request is for a height of 15 feet in lieu of the 
maximum permitted of 12 feet for accessory buildings.    

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 Staff recommends approval of the variance subject to the 

conditions outlined in the staff report.  
  
NEXT STEP(S):  
 Obtain building permits 
  
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Staff Report 
 



Location Map



CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111

STAFF REPORT
TO: PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD
PREPARED BY: JESSICA FRYE, PLANNER I
DATE: DECEMBER 2, 2016
SUBJECT: VARIANCE

441 N. LAKEVIEW AVENUE (0.253 ± ACRES)
PARCEL ID # 14-22-27-9396-04-140  

APPLICANT: ANTHONY PERRY

INTRODUCTION
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the request for a rear yard setback variance and a height 
restriction variance for the property located at 441 N. Lakeview Ave. in Winter Garden, Florida. 
The first request is for a 21.7 foot rear yard setback in lieu of the minimum required 25.5 foot 
rear yard setback (20% of the lot depth); the second request is for a height of 15 feet in lieu of 
the maximum permitted height of 12 feet for accessory buildings.  If approved, these variances 
will allow a new carport structure to be built in the rear yard. 
The subject property, located on the corner of North Lakeview Avenue, is approximately 0.253 ± 
acre lot. The map below depicts the location of the subject property within the City of Winter 
Garden municipal limits:



441 N. Lakeview Ave. – 0.253 ± acres
Variance - Staff Report

December 5, 2016
Page 2

The subject property is located in the Winter Garden Shores Subdivision and carries the zoning 
designation of R-2 Residential District and is designated LR (Low Density Residential) on the 
Future Land Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 

EXISTING USE
The subject property is improved with a single-family residence.      

ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING
The adjacent property to the north, south, and east are zoned  R-2 with a Future Land Use 
Designation of Low Density Residential and are improved with single-family residential homes 
within the City of Winter Garden’s municipal limits.  The property to the west is zoned R-1 with 
a Future Land Use Designation of Low Density Residential and is improved with a sigle-family 
residence and is within the City of Winter Garden’s municipal limits.  

PROPOSED USE
The applicant is proposing to construct a 14’ x 32’ detached open carport (448 square feet) 
behind the existing primary structure, with primary access through the alley behind the property.  
The accessory structures/building code states accessory buildings shall not be closer than four 
feet to any other accessory building on the same lot, to meet this requirement the applicant 
needed to move the structure 3.8 feet into the rear yard setback.  

CODE REFERENCE
Section 118-1310 (c) (2) a.  of the code states that an accessory building greater than 160 square 
feet must comply with all the setback requirements of the principle structure.

Section 118-398 (1) c. of the code states that in the R-2 residential district for single-family and 
two-family dwelling units that the minimum rear yard setback requirement is 20% of the depth 
of the lot.

Section 118-1310 (b).  of the code states that detached accessory building walls shall not exceed 
nine feet in height, and roof peaks shall not exceed 12 feet in height.  

The applicant is seeking a 3.8 foot variance to the rear yard setback and a 3 foot variance to the 
accessory building height restrictions.  

CODE REQUIREMENTS / CRITERIA

Code Requirements/Criteria:
Section 118-131 of the City Code that relates to the review criteria states that, “A variance may 
be granted from land development regulations by the planning and zoning board if the planning 
and zoning board concludes that literal enforcement of the provisions of land development 
regulations would result in either practical difficulties (for setback and parking provisions) or 
unnecessary hardships (for all other land development regulations) for the property at issue.”  
The code also lists the following criteria that are to be addressed before a variance can be 
approved. Underlined text is Staff’s comments concerning this particular petition.



441 N. Lakeview Ave. – 0.253 ± acres
Variance - Staff Report

December 5, 2016
Page 3

(1) Granting the variance will not cause or allow interference with the reasonable enjoyment of 
adjacent or nearby property owners or negatively impact the standard of living of the citizens 
of the city;
The proposed carport built 21.7 feet in lieu of 25.5 feet from the rear property line and built 
with a height of 15 feet in lieu of 12 feet should not negatively impact or interfere with the 
reasonable enjoyment of adjacent or nearby property owners.  Other properties in the 
neighborhood have accessory buildings and structures in similar locations.  

(2) The variance will allow a reasonable use of the property, which use is not out of character 
with other properties in the same zoning category;
The proposed carport built 21.7 feet in lieu of 25.5 feet from the rear property line and built 
with a height of 15 feet in lieu of 12 feet will allow reasonable use of the property. Several 
properties within the area contain existing primary and accessory structures that do not meet 
current code requirements.  The property located at 410 N. Lakeview Ave. received a 2.8 
foot variance in February of 1995 to build an addition onto the house.  Another property 
located 623 N. Lakeview Ave. received a 6 foot variance to the rear yard setback in August 
of 1979.  The property located at 50 W. Garden St. received a 3 foot variance to the side yard 
setback in March of 2016.  

 (3)In the context presented, strict compliance with the land development regulation will not 
further any legitimate city objective or the benefits that would be achieved under the other 
variance criteria by the granting of the variance outweigh the benefits under this criteria if 
the variance were denied;
Strict compliance with the City’s land development regulations will not further any 
legitimate City objective.  The requests do not encroach into any recorded easements, do not 
exceed the maximum impervious surface ratio allowed in the R-2 zoning district, and are in 
compliance with all other setbacks and development regulations for the Winter Garden Code 
of Ordinances. 

(4) The granting of the variance is consistent with the city's comprehensive plan; and
The variances are consistent with the provisions of the City’s Comprehensive Plan relating to 
low density residential neighborhood character.

(5) The variance requested is the minimum variance that will make reasonable use of the land, 
building, or structure or the benefits that would be achieved under the other variance criteria 
by the granting of the variance outweigh the benefits under these criteria if the variance were 
denied.
The variances requested are the minimum required variances that will make reasonable use 
of the land.  The proposed carport should not negatively impact the neighbors and is 
consistent with the surrounding neighborhood. Denying this variance does not benefit the 
property owner or the City.

SUMMARY
City Staff recommends approval of the variances to sections 118-398(1) c. and 118-1310 (b) 
allowing for a variance of 3.8 feet to the rear yard setback and a variance of 3 feet to the 
accessory building height restriction to allow construction of a new carport that is 15 feet tall 
with the following conditions:



441 N. Lakeview Ave. – 0.253 ± acres
Variance - Staff Report

December 5, 2016
Page 4

1. The carport cannot become fully enclosed. 
2. Access must be through the back alley.
3. To mitigate visibility to neighboring properties, the area shall be landscaped and plans 

submitted with the building permit. 

NEXT STEP 
Apply for the appropriate Building Permits (Updated Survey noting current conditions on lot 
must be provided at time of permitting).

ATTACHMENTS 

- Aerial Photo
- Aerial Photo Expanded
- Survey 
- Current Condition Site Plan
- Site Plan
- Example of product
- Site Photos



441 N. Lakeview Ave. – 0.253 ± acres
Variance - Staff Report

December 5, 2016
Page 5

AERIAL PHOTO
441 N. Lakeview Ave.



441 N. Lakeview Ave. – 0.253 ± acres
Variance - Staff Report

December 5, 2016
Page 6

AERIAL PHOTO (Expanded)
441 N. Lakeview Ave.

623 N. Lakeview Ave.
6’ variance to rear

8/27/1979

410 N. Lakeview 
Ave. 2.8’ variance

2/27/1995

50 W. Garden St.
3’ variance to side

3/7/2016



441 N. Lakeview Ave. – 0.253 ± acres
Variance - Staff Report

December 5, 2016
Page 7

SURVEY 
441 N. Lakeview Ave. 

This survey does not 
accurately depict the 
current conditions of 

the lot.  A garage, 
driveway alteration, 
and patio have been 

added to the lot.  



441 N. Lakeview Ave. – 0.253 ± acres
Variance - Staff Report

December 5, 2016
Page 8

CURRENT CONDITION SITE PLAN
(Excluding driveway extension leading to new garage)

441 N Lakeview Ave.



441 N. Lakeview Ave. – 0.253 ± acres
Variance - Staff Report

December 5, 2016
Page 9

SITE PLAN
441 N Lakeview Ave.



441 N. Lakeview Ave. – 0.253 ± acres
Variance - Staff Report

December 5, 2016
Page 10

ELEVATIONS
441 N Lakeview Ave.

Proposed Product will have a brown roof to match existing home.



441 N. Lakeview Ave. – 0.253 ± acres
Variance - Staff Report

December 5, 2016
Page 11

SITE PHOTOS
441 N Lakeview Ave.

Facing South toward proposed location

Facing south including other structures in the rear



441 N. Lakeview Ave. – 0.253 ± acres
Variance - Staff Report

December 5, 2016
Page 12

Facing Southeast

Facing east toward the rear of the property



441 N. Lakeview Ave. – 0.253 ± acres
Variance - Staff Report

December 5, 2016
Page 13

Facing east, adjacent to the southern property line

Facing northeast from the south property line



441 N. Lakeview Ave. – 0.253 ± acres
Variance - Staff Report

December 5, 2016
Page 14

Facing north toward the gate for entrance/exit to rear alley

Facing the eastern property line behind the home facing the gate leading to and from the alley



441 N. Lakeview Ave. – 0.253 ± acres
Variance - Staff Report

December 5, 2016
Page 15

Alley in the rear of the property (eastern property line)

END OF STAFF REPORT

Neighbor to the south of the property.


	2016-12-05 PZ Agenda ONLY
	2016-11-07 PZ Minutes DRAFT
	535 W Plant Street (Rezoning) P & Z Cover Memo
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	Location Map
	535 W Plant St -  (Rezoning) Staff Report
	Ordinance 17-02 W Plant Street - 535 Rezoning
	P & Z Cover Memo Lake Roberts Reserve
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	P & Z Cover Memo DHP Solutions
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	Location Map
	Plant Street S - 553 (Golf Cart Sales Facility SEP)- P&Z STAFF REPORT
	P & Z Cover Memo 441 N Lakeview Ave
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	Location Map
	441 N Lakeview Ave_Variance P&Z Staff Report



